

**Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri
Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO)**

**Mike Sauer
Perry County Commissioner
321 N Main, Suite #2
Perryville, MO 63775
Phone #: (573)547-4242**

Email Address: msauer@perrycountymo.us

CHIEF LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIALS SOUTHEAST REGION OF MISSOURI BY-LAWS

Preamble

WHEREAS, the counties of Bollinger, Cape Girardeau, Dunklin, Iron, Madison, Mississippi, New Madrid, Pemiscot, Perry, St. Francois, Ste. Genevieve, Scott, and Stoddard have been duly constituted themselves to be the Southeast Region of Missouri Local Elected Officials (referred to hereafter as Southeast Regional Caucus).

NOW THEREFORE, the Southeast Regional Caucus do hereby adopt the following by-laws:

ARTICLE 1 Caucus Established

The counties aforementioned do hereby constitute themselves to be the Southeast Regional Caucus for the purpose of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA).

ARTICLE 11 Governance

2.1 Southeast Regional Caucus

The Southeast Regional Caucus shall be governed by the members consisting of the Local Elected Officials of each of the thirteen (13) counties or his/her designee thereof, as provided hereinafter.

- a. The Presiding Commissioner shall be the Local Elected Official or his/her designee of the thirteen (13) counties listed in the Preamble of these by-laws.
- b. The Local Elected Official may designate an alternate representative from their local government entity to attend and participate in the Caucus meetings on the Local Elected Official's behalf. However, this designee shall not possess the right to vote on behalf of such Local Elected Official, unless the proxy voting is as outlined in Article 2.5 of the Southeast Regional Caucus By-Laws.

2.2 Officers

- a. Every odd year in December, the Southeast Regional Caucus shall elect from its membership a chairperson (referred to hereafter as Chief Local Elected Official, CLEO), a Vice-Chairperson (referred to hereafter as the Vice-Chief Local Elected Official, Vice CLEO) and such other officers as may be provided in the Southeast Regional Caucus bylaws for a term of two years or until a successor is elected. Vacancies shall be filled by election for the remainder of the unexpired term. The Southeast Regional Caucus shall elect from its membership a Secretary.

- b. The CLEO shall preside over meetings of the Local Elected Officials, be responsible for managing the affairs of the Caucus and serve as the Chief Local Elected Official under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act. The CLEO shall sign all documents as authorized by the Act.
- c. The Vice-CLEO shall perform the duties of the CLEO in his/her absence.
- d. The Southeast Regional Caucus Secretary shall be responsible for the taking, recording, duplicating, distributing, and filing of all minutes of the Southeast Regional Caucus meetings and shall be responsible for keeping a record on file of all official public records and correspondence of the CLEO's.

2.3 Committees

- a. All Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act committees shall consist of at least one member of the Southeast Regional Caucus.
- b. All committees authorized hereunder shall report and be accountable to the Southeast Regional Caucus membership.

2.4 Meetings

- a. The Local Elected Officials shall meet in December of each calendar year. The Southeast Regional Caucus Secretary shall provide meeting notices, copies of the previous meeting's minutes and an agenda of any business to be discussed to all Southeast Regional Caucus members at least five (5) calendar days prior to the date of each meeting.
- b. A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the Local Elected Official's duly representing member counties present at a meeting or present by telephone/internet connection. The business of the Southeast Regional Caucus must be conducted in order to serve participant and businesses in a timely manner; therefore, the Local Elected Officials will make every conscious effort to be in attendance at the annual meeting. To assure that the Local Elected Officials may conduct business timely and to assure a quorum, members may connect to the annual meeting by telephone/internet.
- c. Special meetings may be called when requested by the CLEO, Local Elected Official, WIOA Chairperson and/or WIOA President/COO with at least five (5) in advance.
- d. Conference calls and/or internet connection meetings may be held to conduct business that is necessary prior to the next regular Commissioner or WIOA Board meeting. A forty-eight (48) hour notice will be emailed or texted to the Local Elected Officials and notice will be posted. These calls will be open to the public and access numbers will be provided on the notice.
- e. Agreements, local plans, and budgets under Public Law requiring CLEO approval and any amendments thereto, shall be approved by simple majority vote of the members present or connected by telephone/internet at a meeting of the Local Elected Officials prior to execution by the CLEO. Local Plan Modifications required by the state may be

"signed off" by the CLEO who has authority to sign the approval letter by the other members without a special called meeting or conference connection.

2.5 Proxies

Absent members of the Local Elected Officials may authorize another member of such member's Commission to stand as their proxy. Such proxy authorization shall state the date, name of absent member and name of the proxy; include a notarized signature of the absent member; and shall be submitted to the Clerk of the Local Elected Officials at or prior to the meeting(s) for which the proxy is effective. If the proxy authorization is properly executed and submitted, the proxy may act with all powers of the absent member.

2.6 Parliamentary Authority

Meetings of the Local Elected Officials shall be conducted according to the procedures contained in Robert's Rules of Order, revised and in accordance with the Missouri Sunshine Law.

2.7 Local Elected Official Records

The Southeast Regional Caucus Secretary shall keep meeting notices, copies of the previous meeting's minutes and agendas in their office.

ARTICLE 111

Functions of the Local Elected Officials

The Southeast Regional Caucus shall perform the following functions for Local Elected Officials, as specified in Public Law 113-128, the Act:

3.1 GRANT RECIPIENT. - IN GENERAL. - The Local Elected Official in a local area shall serve as the local grant recipient for, and shall be liable for any misuse of, the grant funds allocated to the local area under sections 128 and 133.

3.2 DESIGNATION. — The Southeast Regional Caucus may designate an entity to serve as local grant sub-recipient or as local fiscal agent; such designation shall not relieve the Local

Elected Officials/ Southeast Regional Caucus of liability for any misuse of grant funds. In the event of grant funds that cannot be recovered, in whole or in part, from the sub-recipient or fiscal agent responsible for the misuse, the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Board shall repay an amount equal to the amount of the misused funds that cannot be recovered. Any misused funds will be reimbursed through a claim on the board's liability insurance. If the claim is not covered by the insurance, or the payment is not sufficient to reimburse the misused funds, the balance will be settled with stand-in costs. Should the WIOA Board be unable to provide funds in an amount sufficient to repay the amount of misused funds that cannot be recovered; any remaining amount of misused funds must be reimbursed by the local government, (see Agreement for Southeast Regional Caucus of Local Elected Officials, Southeast Region of Missouri).

3.3 REGIONAL PLANNING. -The local WIOA Board and the Southeast Regional Caucus in each planning region described in sub-paragraph (B) or (C) of sub-section (a) (2) shall engage in a regional planning process.

3.4 SELECTION OF ONE-STOP OPERATOR. - Consistent with section 121 the local board, with the agreement of the Southeast Regional Caucus for the local area shall designate or certify one-stop operator as described in section 121 (d)(2)(A); and may terminate for cause the eligibility of such operator.

3.5 PROGRAM OVERSIGHT. — The local board, in partnership with the Southeast Regional Caucus for the local area, shall conduct oversight for local youth WIOA activities authorized under section 129(c), local employment and training activities authorized under sub-sections (c) and (d) of section 134, and the one-stop delivery system in the local area; and ensure the appropriate use and management of the funds provided under sub-title B for the activities and system described in clause (i); and (B) for WIOA activities, ensure the appropriate use, management, and investment of funds to maximize performance outcomes under section 116.

3.6 BUDGET AND ADMINISTRATION. - (A) BUDGET. - The local board shall develop a budget for the activities of the local board in the local area, consistent with the local plan and the duties of the local board under this section, subject to the approval of the Southeast Regional Caucus. (A) ADMINISTRATION. - (i) GRANT RECIPIENT. -IN GENERAL. -The Southeast Regional Caucus in a local area shall serve as the local grant recipient for, and shall be liable for any misuse of, the grant funds allocated to the local area under sections 128 and 133, unless the Southeast Regional Caucus reaches an agreement with the Governor for the Governor to act as the local grant recipient and bear such liability.

(II) DESIGNATION. - In order to assist in administration of the grant funds, the Southeast Regional Caucus or the Governor, may designate an entity to serve as a local grant sub recipient for such funds or as a local fiscal agent. Such designation shall not relieve the Southeast Regional Caucus or the Governor of the liability for any misuse of grant funds as described in Section 3.2.

(III) DISBURSAL. - The local grant recipient or an entity designated under sub-clause (II) shall disburse the grant funds for WIOA activities as the direction of the local board, pursuant to the requirements of this title. The local grant recipient or entity designated under sub-clause (II) shall disburse the funds immediately on receiving such direction from the local board.

3.7 NEGOTIATION OF LOCAL PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES. - The local board, the Southeast Regional Caucus, and the Governor shall negotiate and reach an agreement on local performance accountability measures as described in section 116(c).

3.8 APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS AND ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES. —IN GENERAL. —The Southeast Regional Caucus in a local area is authorized to appoint members of the local board for such area, in accordance with the State of Missouri criteria established under sub-section (b).

Section 107 (b)(2) COMPOSITION. —Such criteria shall require that, at a minimum—

WIOA Local Workforce Development Board	Members
Business (51% majority of total Local WBD membership)	51+%
Labor/Workforce (at least 20% of total Local WDB membership—minimums: 2 Labor; 1 Apprenticeship); However, total must be equal or exceed 20%, so to these three add two more “representatives of the workforce.”	20+%
Adult Education and Literacy (AEL)	1
Vocational Rehabilitation (VR)	1
Wagner-Peyser (Labor Exchange Services—OWD)	1
Higher Education (individual nomination from among other area institutional representatives)	1
Economic Development	1
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families/Missouri Work Assistance Program MWA	1
Notes: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> Only need one Economic Development rep. under WIOA. WIOA Higher Education rep. must be nominated from among other institutions. [Special Rule: WIOA Sec. 107(b)(6)]. At least 20% of Local WDB membership must include 2 members from labor and 1 from an apprenticeship program, if it exists in the local area. Other “representatives of the workforce.” The State of Missouri allows Local WDB members (except within the business category) to represent more than one required category, per WIOA implementing regulations [20 CFR 679.320(h)]. This information is a guide and nothing should be construed to prevent optional member additions, as long as compliance with content from the other categories exists. 	
Total Southeast WDB Members	22

3.9 Perform any other duties or obligations conferred upon the Local Elected Officials as designated under the Act.

ARTICLE IV

Amendments

4.1 Amendments may be proposed to the CLEO in writing by any Southeast Regional Caucus member. By-laws or amendments may be adopted by the affirmative vote of the majority of the entire Southeast Regional Caucus membership at any meeting called for that purpose.

4.2 Copies of all proposed amendments shall be furnished in writing to each member of the Southeast Regional Caucus at least five (5) calendar days prior to consideration.

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) enacted July 22, 2014

The by-laws were revised and adopted in accordance and to align with Public Law 111 M28, the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act upon approval: 12/30/22

Presented to the Southeast Regional Caucus: 12/30/22

Voted upon to accept: 12/30/22



Mike V Sauer, CLEO Chairman

The CLEO and Vice CLEO for the Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri.

Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO):

Mike Sauer, Perry County Commissioner
321 N. Main St. #2
Perryville, MO 63775 Phone: 573-547-4242,
Email: msauer@perrycountymo.us

Voted upon to accept: 8/23/23



Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO Chairman

Vice CLEO:

Charles Herbst, Cape Girardeau County Commissioner by Proxy
One Barton Square, Suite 301
Cape Girardeau, MO 63701 Phone: 573-204-2499,
Email: cherbst@capecounty.us

AGREEMENT FOR CAUCUS OF LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIALS SOUTHEAST REGION OF MISSOURI

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 1 of, January 2025, by and for the thirteen counties of Bollinger, Cape Girardeau, Dunklin, Iron, Madison, Mississippi, New Madrid, Pemiscot, Perry, St. Francois, Ste. Genevieve, Scott, and Stoddard in the State of Missouri (referred to hereafter as Southeast Regional Caucus);

Whereas the County Commissioners of the aforementioned counties as the Southeast Regional Caucus did previously adopt resolutions authorizing and creating the Southeast Regional Workforce Development Area and the Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri (WDB);

NOW THEREFORE, the Southeast Regional Caucus hereby agrees to the following:

SECTION 1: The aforementioned counties are hereby constituted as a Southeast Regional Caucus for the purposes of Section 107(c)(1)(B) of Public Law 113-128, of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA);

SECTION 2: The presiding commissioner of each of the aforementioned counties (or their designee associate commissioner) shall constitute the Southeast Regional Caucus of Local Elected Officials for the purpose of appointing individuals to serve as board members of the Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri for the Southeast Region under Section 107(c)(1)(A) of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA).

SECTION 3: The Southeast Regional Caucus shall elect from its membership a Chairperson (known as the Chief Local Elected Official) and Vice Chairperson to serve for a term of two years or until a successor is elected or appointed. Vacancies in either of these offices shall be filled by an election for the remaining portion of the unexpired term(s). The Chief Local Elected Official shall be permitted to sign documents for and upon behalf of the Southeast Regional Caucus. Upon request by the Southeast Regional Caucus, the Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri will appoint a staff member to act as the clerk for the Southeast Regional Caucus;

SECTION 4: The Southeast Regional Caucus may adopt bylaws or other operational guidelines, or may amend this Agreement, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Southeast Regional Caucus present at any regular meeting of the Southeast Regional Caucus, provided that written copies thereof are mailed to each member of the Southeast Regional Caucus at least seven (7) days prior to consideration of the proposed action;

SECTION 5: The Southeast Regional Caucus shall execute an agreement with the WDB specifying the roles and responsibilities of each party to the agreement. The agreement shall

be reviewed and ratified, or changed, at least once each year to ensure it maintains relevancy and consistency with Section 107 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA);

1

SECTION 6: The Southeast Regional Caucus shall review and approve local plans and plan modifications prepared by the WDB concerning the use of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) funds. In the event a local plan submitted for the approval of the Southeast Regional Caucus is not approved, the Southeast Regional Caucus shall detail the correction action necessary by the WDB to secure approval;

SECTION 7: As required by Section 107(c)(B)(i) of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), the local elected officials of the local area shall serve as the grant recipient of WIOA funds and shall be liable for any misuse of the grant funds allocated to the local area under sections 128 and 133 of the Act. To assist in the administration of these grant funds, the local elected officials have the option of designating an entity to serve as the local grant sub recipient for the local area. The Caucus of Local Elected Officials has selected the Workforce Development Board of Southeast Missouri (WDB) to assist in the administration of these grant funds as the local grant sub recipient and fiscal agent;

SECTION 8: While the liability for the misuse of grant funds is passed on to the WDB and in turn on to subcontracted program operators, the ultimate liability for misuse of funds does not detach from the local elected officials. In the event of misuse of funds that cannot be resolved any other way, the entity responsible for the misuse will be the first accountable for repayment. If this party is unable to satisfy the debt, responsibility will revert to the WDB, and if for any reason there remains liability beyond the WDB's ability to repay, the remaining liability will be apportioned among the thirteen counties of the Southeast Region based on each county's level of participation in the specific disallowed cost. If the liability is a generalized debt over all thirteen counties, the liability to each county shall be proportionate to the number of participants served in that county for the same year in which the misuse of funds occurred..

SECTION 9: This Agreement shall be effective when approved by resolutions adopted by each county party hereto and signed by the presiding commissioner (or their designee) of each county. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior written agreements of a similar nature under Public Law 113-128, the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

DocuSigned by:

88A23F1CC0A74B5...

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____

Signed by:
Charlie Herbst
9562C20B88B20483

1/30/2025

Date _____

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date _____

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date _____

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date _____

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date _____

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date _____

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date _____

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date _____

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date _____

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date _____

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date _____

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature Donald Collins Date 1/22/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date _____

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date _____

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date _____

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date _____

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date _____

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date _____

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date _____

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date _____

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date _____

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date _____

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature Jim Scagg Date 1-30-25

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date _____

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date _____

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date _____

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date _____

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date _____

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date _____

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date _____

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date _____

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnez, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Clint Tracy, signature _____ Date _____

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date _____

Iron County

Ben Young, signature _____ Date _____

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date _____

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature  Date 7-20-23

New Madrid County

Mark Baker, signature _____ Date _____

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date _____

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, signature _____ Date _____

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date _____

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date _____

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date _____

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date _____

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date _____

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date _____

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date _____

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date _____

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature Mike Kellams Date 1-30-25

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date _____

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date _____

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date _____

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date _____

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date _____

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date _____

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Signed by:
Mark Cartee
7F00AGC0D8AE43F...

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025



St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Signed by:

Harold Gallaher

7D6F44F4AA594E0...

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date 2/11/2025

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as shown by the signature of the presiding commissioner (or designee) of each county party, as follows:

Bollinger County

Leo Arnzen, signature _____ Date _____

Cape Girardeau County

Charles Herbst, Vice CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Dunklin County

Donald Collins, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Iron County

Jim Scaggs, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Madison County

Larry Kemp, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Mississippi County

James Conn, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

New Madrid County

Mike Kellams, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Pemiscot County

Mark Cartee, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Perry County

Mike V Sauer, CLEO, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Scott County

Danny Tetley, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

St Francois County

Harold Gallaher, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Ste Genevieve County

Randy Ruzicka, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Stoddard County

Greg Mathis, signature _____ Date 2/13/2025

Signed by:
Greg Mathis
9585C11605B1414...